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BOARD MEETING 
March 8, 2023, 10:30 a.m. 

 
Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention Center 

Legends 1 Meeting Room 
 

 TENTATIVE AGENDA 
*Action Item 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call   
 
II. Public Comment 
 
III. Review of Delegation of Authority Items 
 
IV. Approval of December 7, 2022  Board Meeting Minutes* 

 
V. Review and Approval of 2021-2022 Audit * 

Presented by Moss, Krusick and Associates - HANDOUT 

VI. Staff and Committee Reports 
A. CEO Report-Verbal 
B. Finance Manager’s Report 
C. 2nd Quarter Program Update  

 
VII. New/Unfinished Business 

  
A. Approval of Episcopal Children’s Services 2022/2023 Contract Amendment #0003-22* 
B. Approval of Revisions to the 2022-2023 Budget for Early Learning Coalition of North  

Florida*  
C. Approval of the Coalition’s 2023-2024 COOP (Continuity of Operations Plan)* 
D. Retro Approval of the ELCNF Cyber Insurance Coverage with Florida Insurance Trust * 
E. Approval of Representative of Private Family Home Care Providers: Patricia Dorsey* 
F. Approval of the member appointed by Board of County Commissioners or the Governing 

Board of a Municipality:  Krista Joseph* 
 

 
VIII.    Review of Board Membership – Informational  

 
IX.      Board Absenteeism Log- Informational 
 
X.    Board Comment 
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XI.  Next Meetings 
 

• Wednesday, May 3, 2023 10:30 a.m. – Exec/Admin Committee Conference Call 
Meeting 

 
• Wednesday, June 21, 2023 10:30 a.m. – Board Meeting 

 
XII.  Adjournment* 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 

DESCRIPTION  
Approval of the Delegation of Authority items 
 

Reason for 
Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Board designates authority to the Coalition’s Office Manager to review and 
approve the Chief Executive Officer’s timesheets, leave requests, work related travel 
expenses, and other routine operational requests.  These documents are made 
available at each regular Board meeting. 
 

 
 

 
If this is not done the following would occur: 

 
It was recommended by the board to have these items approved at meetings, 
following the last Accountability Review.  Therefore, the ELC is requesting 
board approval. 
 
 

 
 

How the Action will be 
accomplished 

Board members will review the documents. 

 























 

                                                        Board Meeting 

December 7, 2022 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

 

BOARD MEETING 

The World Golf Village and Convention Center 

Caddy Shack Restaurant 

December 7, 2022 

2:00 p.m. 

 

ATTENDANCE 

 

Members Present: 

Leslie Barstow                       

Vina Delcomyn 

Joy Farris, Acting Chair 

Brian Graham 

Eleanor Hoffman 

Whitney Kersey-Graves 

Mary Ann Holanchock 

Michelle Jonihakis         

Theresa Little 

Aubrie Simpson-Gotham, Vice Chair 

Michael Siragusa 

Jessica Stallings 

Cassandra Virgo 

Renee Williams 

 

Members Absent: 

Dr. Myrna Allen, excused 

Rebecca Chandler, excused 

Kyle Gammon, excused 

Brian McElhone,  excused 

Marsha Peacock, excused  

Patricia Tauch, excused 

Christian Whitehurst,  excused 

 

 

Staff Present: 

Dawn Bell, Chief Executive Officer 

Susan Pettijohn, Finance Manager 

Christopher Spell, Finance Manager 

Tajaro Dixon, Grants and Operations Manager 

Marie Hanson, Office Manager 

 

Others Present: 

Jennifer Overly, Board member nominee 

Teresa Matheny, Chief of Programs, ECS 

Carol Kazounis, Putnam Dept. of Health 

  

 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

J. Farris called the meeting to order at 2:03pm.  Roll Call was taken by M. Hanson; quorum was 

met with 14 of the 22 board members in attendance.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

No comments. 

 

REVIEW OF DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY ITEMS 
The Board designates authority to the Coalition’s Office Manager to review and approve the Chief 

Executive Officer’s timesheets, leave requests, work related travel expenses, and other routine 

operational requests.  These documents are made available at each regular board meeting for board 

review.  Delegation items were emailed to all Board Members with no discussion or questions on the 

items reviewed. 
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APPROVAL OF THE DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY ITEMS* 

 

1. V. Delcomyn motioned to approve the Delegation of Authority Items as 

presented.  M. Jonihakis seconded the motion. No discussion.  Motion passed 

unanimously.  

 

 

APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER 14, 2022 ANNUAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 

 

2. T. Little motioned to approve the September 14, 2022 Board Meeting 

Minutes.  A. Simpson-Gotham seconded the motion. No discussion-motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

RE-APPROVAL OF DECEMBER 1, 2021 ANNUAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 

 

A. Added recusal language for T. Matheny vote on Management Decision 

Recommendation for the ECS Audit June 30, 2021. 

 

3.   T. Little motioned to approve the September 14, 2022 Board Meeting  

 Minutes.  A. Simpson-Gotham seconded the motion. No discussion-motion  

 passed unanimously. 

 

 

STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 

A.   CEO Report-Verbal 

D. Bell updated the Board on approval of the United Way two year grant.   

 

B.  FINANCE MANAGER’S REPORT 

S. Pettijohn and C. Spell presented the following report: 

 
 
Desk Reviews and Audits 
Our DEL monitoring occurred the last week in Oct and first week in November.  Two minor items were 
noted in our report.  DEL has not yet determined if those items will remain in the final report.  Our prior 
year PCAP was closed by this monitoring group since DEL had not closed that report. Our first half year 
desk review is currently in progress.  Our internal audit is also currently in progress.   
 
Q1 Financial Statements (see attachment) 
Attached are the Q1 financial statements for FY 2022-23.  The Coalition’s year to date surplus is slightly 
less than was budgeted.  Grant expenses are less than anticipated at this time and in direct proportion 
to the reduction in grant revenue.   
 
Targets and Restrictions  
VPK Admin percentage is currently 2.9% which is lower than our target of 4%.  SR Administration 
percentage is currently 4.1% which is less than our target of 5%.   All other targets and restrictions 
remain in alignment with Grant requirements. 
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Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 

DRAFT 

Balance Sheet 

As of September 30, 2022 

 
ASSETS 

Cash, Operating $ 8,346,316 

Cash, Money Market 61,794 

Petty Cash 200 

Deposits 850 

DEL Receivable 3,856,206 

ECS Advance ARPA 5,893,022 

Prepaid Expense 7,973 

Equipment 6,498 

Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (6,498) 

 
TOTAL ASSETS 

 
$ 18,166,361 

 
LIABILITIES 

Episcopal Children's Services Payable $ 3,668,430 

DEL Advance Payable 14,645,435 

Accounts Payable 162 

Interest due to OEL 577 

Accrued Vacation 24,129 

Accrued Employee Benefits 816 

 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

 
$ 18,339,549 

 
 

Net Assets at 6/30/2022 

 
(173,551) 

Net change at 09/30/2022 363 

 
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

 
  $ 18,166,361   

 
 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 

FY 2022-2023 

As of September 30, 2022 

 
9.14.22 

  
Favorable 

Notice of Awards Annual Budget Q1 Budget Q1 Actual (Unfavorable) 

School Readiness (SR) $ 22,892,970 $ 5,723,242.50 $ 5,077,529 $ (645,714) 

PDG Services 74,990 18,748 6,422 (12,325) 

CRRSA 2,144,687 536,172 589,141 52,969 

ESSER 87,905 21,976 87,784 65,808 

ARP 27,735,669 6,933,917 5,515,621 (1,418,296) 
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Voluntary 
PreKindergarten (VPK) 

19,867,462 4,966,866 4,390,833 (576,032) 

Total Notice of 
Award 

$ 72,803,683 $ 18,200,921 $ 15,667,329 $ (2,533,591) 

 
Subrecipient Expense 

School Readiness (SR) $ 21,752,477 $ 5,438,119.25 $ 4,836,272 $ 601,847 

PDG Services 74,990 18,748 6,422 12,325 

CRRSA 2,144,687 536,172 589,141 (52,969) 

ESSER 87,905 21,976 87,784 (65,808) 

ARP 27,735,669 6,933,917 5,515,621 1,418,296 

Voluntary 
PreKindergarten (VPK) 

19,803,067 4,950,767 4,386,318 564,448 

Total Subrecipient 
Expense 

$ 71,598,795 $ 17,899,699 $ 15,421,558 $ 2,478,141 

 

Grant Funds Available to 
ELC of North FL 

 

$ 1,204,888 

 

$ 301,222 

 

$ 245,771 

 

$ (55,451) 

 
Other Donations and Revenue 

Interest Income $ 600 $ 150 $ 264 $ 114 

Clay Electric 
Foundation 

15,000 0 0 0 

Quality Teacher's 
Conference 

6,000 0 0 0 

Miscellaneous 
Donations 

3,500 1,100 1,132 32 

Total Revenues   $ 1,229,988   $ 302,472   $ 247,167   $ (55,305) 

 
ELC of North Florida Estimated Expense 

Salaries $ 595,000 $ 148,750 $ 137,015 $ 11,735 

PR Taxes 65,000 16,250 10,432 5,818 

Health Insurance & HSA 
Contributions 

150,000 37,500 38,336 (836) 
Pension 40,000 10,000 6,349 3,651 

Life, Disability, and WC 18,000 4,500 2,122 2,378 

Staff Development 10,000 2,500 120 2,380 

Contract Services 12,000 3,000 0 3,000 

Auditing 15,000 0 0 0 

Legal 500 125 0 125 

Printing & Reproduction 2,000 500 332 168 

Repairs & Maintenance 1,000 250 0 250 

Office Sites - Occupancy 65,000 16,250 11,516 4,734 

Postage, Freight & Delivery 4,000 1,000 218 782 

Rentals - Office Equipment 6,000 1,500 538 962 
Office Supplies 12,000 3,000 1,461 1,539 

Communications 22,000 5,500 4,745 755 

D & O Insurance 2,700 0 0 0 

General Liability 8,700 0 0 0 

Equipment <$5000 4,500 1,125 2,600 (1,475) 
Equipment >$5000 4,000 1,000 0 1,000 

Travel - In State 8,000 2,000 0 2,000 

Travel - Out of State 6,000 1,500 0 1,500 

Travel - Local 7,000 1,750 897 853 

Bank Fees 500 125 0 125 
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Software/Licenses/Support 20,000 5,000 2,431 2,569 

Web Service 35,000 8,750 4,100 4,650 

Other employee expenditures 4,000 1,000 8 992 

ADP Fees 9,000 2,250 1,797 453 

Dues & Subscriptions 15,000 8,000 9,730 (1,730) 
Taxes, Licenses and Fees 800 200 0 200 

Misc. - Other Current Charges 9,000 2,250 1,016 1,234 

Quality Program 65,000 16,250 11,041 5,209 

 

Total ELC North Florida 
Estimated Expense 

 

1,216,700 

 

301,825 

 

246,804 

 

55,021 

     
Surplus or (Loss)   $ 13,288   $ 647   $ 363   $ (284) 

 

 
 
 

C.  1ST QUARTER PROGRAM UPDATE 

T. Dixon presented the following report: 

Coalition Activities:   

 The Coalition received the final report (April 13, 2022) for the annual Division of Early 
Learning (DEL) Fiscal Monitoring that occurred March 1-4, 2022.  The report included 
two compliance issues and one observation.  The Coalition submitted its corrective 
action plan June 21, 2022 and are currently still awaiting approval and the close-out 
letter.  

 July 11 – 15, 2022 began the DEL Accountability Review, which continues.  The 
scheduled date for the Exit Interview is October 26, 2022.  

 The Coalition received an additional notice of award and the Episcopal Children’s 
Services (ECS) Contract Amendment #2 is in today’s packet. 

 The Coalition staff completed the 2022/2023 Internal Controls Questionnaire (ICQ).  In 
addition, ECS completes this same ICQ each year and their responses are reviewed 
by Coalition staff for any needed follow-up and/or approval. 

 The Coalition staff met the October 1, 2022 DEL deadline for all the annual items such 
as the annual report, inventory, Sub-recipient monitoring plan, Fiscal prior year 
Revenue and Expense report and current year Budget. 

 All Coalition staff completed their annual review of Anti-Fraud plan, policies and 
practices in July. 

 Annual archiving processes have begun. 
 

Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) Contract Monitoring:  

 
The 2021/2022 Fourth Quarter Monitoring was performed August 15 - 26, 2022.  This monitoring 
included all DEL required “eligibility” criteria for School Readiness and VPK.  Additional areas of 
review were the Data Security Systems Updates, SR Plan Compliance II. H. (Child) Pre/post 
Assessments, ARPA Provider Application Monitoring, Non-direct Costs Review (3rd and 4th 
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quarters combined), and Fiscal Year-end Overview.  From this review, there were seven 
compliance issues that required staff refresher training sessions, and some required corrections 
during monitoring.  The staff trainings were held in time for ECS’s response to the final report.  And 
the close-out letter will be done once the supplemental ARPA Provider Application Monitoring has 
been completed. 
 
The 2022/2023 First Quarter Monitoring is scheduled for November 4 - 18, 2022.  This 
monitoring will include all DEL required “eligibility” criteria for School Readiness and VPK.  
Additional areas of review will be Data Security Systems Updates and the ARPA Provider 
Application Monitoring. 
 
ALL full reports are available upon request. 

 

D.  EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE: 

 

APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 12, 2022 EXEC/ADMIN MEETING MINUTES* 
 

1. W. Kersey-Graves motioned to approve the Minutes of the October 12, 2022 

Admin/Exec. Meeting.  L. Barstow seconded the motion. No further discussion, 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

RETRO APPROVAL OF THE REVISIONS TO THE 2022-2023 BUDGET FOR EARLY 

LEARNING COALITION OF NORTH FLORIDA* 

 

2. V. Delcomyn motioned to approve the revision to the 2022-2023 Budget for Early 

           Learning Coalition of North Florida.  T. Little seconded the motion.  No further, 

           discussion, motion passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE REQUEST FOR SENDING FOUR BOARD MEMBERS TO 

ATTEND THE NATIONAL SUMMIT ON EDUCATION 2022 CONFERENCE* 
 

3. L. Barstow motioned to approve the request for sending four Board members to attend 

the National Summit on Education 2022 Conference.  M. Jonihakis seconded the 

motion. R. Williams, M. Holanchock, J. Stallings, T. Little recused themselves from 

the vote, memorandum of voting conflict is attached to Board Minutes.  No further 

discussion, motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

E. EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE, November 2, 2022-Cancelled  

 

 

NEW/UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

REVIEW OF VOTING RECUSAL:  ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM AND STATED AT 

EACH VOTE: 
 

D. Bell reviewed the Memorandum of Voting Conflict form. 
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SUMMARY OF D. BELL ANNUAL EVALUATION-HANDOUT 

 

 The evaluation was conducted on September 14, 2022 with Aubrie Simpson-
Gotham, Vina Delcomyn, Theresa Little and Renee Williams serving as 
evaluators. 
 

 Of the total 20 evaluations emailed to the board members, 9 members 
completed the evaluation and 10 did not return the evaluation. 

 

 Out of a 1 to 5 rating scale, 1= unsatisfactory and 5= Outstanding; Dawn’s Overall 
Rating Score was 4.704 which earned a final rating of “Outstanding”. 
 

 Dawn’s next evaluation period ends September 2, 2023. 
 

 If any Board Member would like to see a copy of the final compiled evaluation 
results, please contact Marie Hanson. 

 

 

APPROVAL OF REVISIONS TO THE 2022-2023 BUDGET FOR EARLY LEARNING 

COALITION OF NORTH FLORIDA.  * 

 

On Sep 29, The Division of Early Learning sent a revision to the Notice of Award for the 2022-

2023 Grant Year.  Compared to our previously approved budget this revision reflects the actual 

NOA for FY2022-23. 

 

The allocation of these funds between ECS and ELCNF has been agreed to by both entities. 

 

4. A. Gotham-Simpson motioned to approve the revisions to the 2022-2023 budget 

for Early Learning Coalition of North Florida.  T. Little seconded the motion.  No 

further discussion, the motion passed unanimously.   

 

APPROVAL OF MANAGEMENT DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ECS 

AUDIT 2021/2022* 

 

To approve management decision to consider the ECS annual audit properly reviewed and therefore 

resolved.  

 

5. V. Delcomyn motioned to approve the management decision recommendations for 

the ECS audit 2021/2022.  M. Jonihakis seconded the motion.  No further 

discussion, the motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

 

APPROVAL OF 2022-2024 SCHOOL READINESS PLAN AMENDMENT 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SUBMISSION* 
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Background: 
House Bills 419 and 1349 modified provisions related to the School Readiness Program that directly 

affect the content of the Early Learning Coalition School Readiness Plan. DEL amended Rule 6M–

9.115, F.A.C., to reflect the new School Readiness Program requirements.  These revisions require 

coalitions to submit plan amendments for the following elements:  

   
 I.A. Membership (previously updated and board approved) 

• I.D. Bylaws (previously updated and board approved)  

• II.C. Eligibility and Enrollment Policies and Procedures  

• II.E. Sliding Fee Scale and Fee Waiver Policies (did not require updates) 

• II.F. Child Screening  

• II.G. Program Assessment  

• II.J. Contracted Slots, if applicable (not applicable) 

 

Four of the seven elements above did not require updates.  The remaining three (highlighted in 

grey) did require updates and they are included with ALL other needed document updates for the 

entire SR Plan (this is done upon SR Plan renewals). 

 

For a complete list of SR Plan revisions, see the attached SR Plan amendment log (and 

documents showing the revisions). 

 

 

6. M. Holanchock motioned to approve the 2022-2024 School Readiness Plan 

Amendment Acknowledgement Submission.  T. Little seconded the motion.  No 

further discussion, the motion passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE EPISCOPAL CHILDREN’S SERVICES 2022/2023 CONTRACT 

AMENDMENT # 0002-22* 

 

Revisions: 

 

A. Item #1 is to make updates to Child Care Resource and Referral reports deliverables. 

B. Items #2 and 3 were to update the School Readiness budgeted amounts, as well as the 

Additional School Readiness-Related Programs budgeted amounts per the September 29, 

2022 Notice of Award and two University of Florida Lastinger Center Contracts through 

DEL. 

 

7. R. Williams motioned to approve the Episcopal Children’s Services 2022/2023 

Contract Amendment # 0002-22.  V. Delcomyn seconded the motion.  No further 

discussion, the motion passed unanimously. 

 

RETRO APPROVAL, EFFECTIVE 8/01/22, ELC OF NORTH FLORIDA AND THE 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA/LASTINGER CENTER FOR EARLY LEARNING 

FLORIDA CONTRACT EFFECTIVE 8/01/22-6/30/2023 (SR101)* 
 

This Contract for Services is made and entered into by and between The University of Florida 

Board of Trustees (a public body corporate of the State of Florida for the benefit of its Lastinger 

Center for Learning) and the ELC of North Florida.  
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THIS CONTRACT is to implement the Early Learning Florida professional development 

Educator Stipends program.   The Coalition will provide (through Episcopal Children’s Services) 

administrative support, distribution of information, completion of timely invoices, and provide 

timely payment to Educators who have submitted course completion documents.  

 

The total contract is not to exceed $50,000. 
 

8. T. Little motioned to retro approve, effective 8/01/22 ELC of North Florida and the 

University of Florida/Lastinger Center for Early Learning Florida Contract 

effective 8/01/22-6/30/2023.  V. Delcomyn seconded the motion.  No further 

discussion, the motion passed unanimously. 

 

RETRO APPROVAL EFFECTIVE 9/01/2022, ELC OF NORTH FLORIDA AND THE 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA/LASTINGERCENTER EARLY LEARNING FLORIDA 

CONTRACT EFFECTIVE 9/01/22-8/31/23*  
 

This Contract for Services is made and entered into by and between The University of Florida 

Board of Trustees (a public body corporate of the State of Florida for the benefit of its Lastinger 

Center for Learning) and the ELC of North Florida.  

 

 

THIS CONTRACT is to support the implementation of Early Learning Florida courses (e.g., 

online only, online with Community of Practice (CoP) Facilitation, and online with Technical 

Assistance (TA) Coaching) that aligns with quality improvement goals/initiatives, for the 

Coalition’s Child Care Providers.  

 

The total contract is not to exceed $13,000. 

 

9. T. Little motion to retro approve, effective 9/01/22, ELC of North Florida and the 

University of Florida/Lastinger Center Early Learning Florida Contract effective 

9/01/22-8/31/23.  V. Delcomyn seconded the motion.  No further discussion, the 

motion was passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF REVISIONS TO THE COALITION’S PERSONNEL POLICIES AND 

PROCEDURES MANUAL* 
 

Revisions: 
 

HR204 – Employment Reference/Criminal History Checks, added updated, missing language from 

21/22 grant agreement background screening requirements for employees who have access to 

confidential information (both for the Coalition which is a “Qualified Entity” and for 

subrecipients/contractors/subcontractors who are Not a “Qualified Entity”).   

 

This was discovered during the Coalition’s DEL Accountability review. 
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10. M. Holanchock motioned to approve the revisions to the Coalition’s Personnel 

Policies and Procedures Manual.  T. Little seconded the motion.  No further 

discussion the motion passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE ELCNF CLAY COUNTY OFFICE LEASE EXTENSION TO 

JANUARY 31, 2024* 

 

Staff requests board approval to approve the lease extension of the ELCNF Clay County Office.      

 

The space is 600 square feet with two large offices, half bath and storage area for supplies.  The 

rent will be increased from $790 per month to $840 per month and includes water.  The office 

houses our Clay County Outreach Assistant, our Clay County Reading Pals resource room and 

library as well as provides a conference area for training. 

 

11. L. Barstow motioned to approve the ELCNF Clay County office lease extension to 

January 31, 2024.  A. Gotham-Simpson seconded the motion.  No further 

discussion, the motion passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF ELCNF ST. AUGUSTINE OFFICE LEASE MARCH 1, 2023 

THROUGH FEBRUARY 29, 2028* 

 

The Coalition requests board approval to renew the lease of the St. Augustine Office located at 

2450 Old Moultrie Road, Ste #103.  The current lease ends on February 28, 2023 and the new 

lease will start on March. 1, 2023 and expire on February 29, 2028.    

 

This office space is considered the Coalition’s main office and houses the CEO, the two Finance 

Managers, the two Program Support Specialists and the Office Manager. In addition, there is the 

main Reading Pals resource room and storage/conference room space. 

 

12. M.  Holanchock motioned to approve the ELCNF St. Augustine office lease March 

1, 2023 through February 29, 2028.  V. Delcomyn seconded the motion.  No 

further discussion, the motion passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF PRIVATE SECTOR BOARD MEMBER AUBRIE SIMPSON-

GOTHAM* 

 

Aubrie Simpson-Gotham is founder & CEO of Fostering Connections, a nonprofit organization 

founded in 2019 that uplifts local children and youth impacted by foster care or trauma by 

providing needed essentials, educational programs, and community connections.   Ms. Simpson-

Gotham has an extensive background in early childhood education. 

 

13. W. Kersey-Graves motioned to approve private sector Board member Aubrie 

Simpson-Gotham.  V. Delcomyn seconded the motion.  A. Gotham Simpson 

recused herself from the vote, memorandum of voting conflict is attached to the 

Board Minutes.  No further discussion, motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

 



 

 

Board Meeting 

December 7, 2022 

APPROVAL OF PRIVATE SECTOR BOARD MEMBER MICHELLE D. JONIHAKIS* 

 

Michelle Jonihakis is an experienced professional with a track record of strong leadership and 

nearly 20 years’ experience in the commercial finance, credit, collections and recovery 

operations of large financial institutions.  She is currently the Senior Business Management 

Specialist, Collections and Recovery Operations Strategy with TD Bank. 

 

14. V. Delcomyn motioned to approve private sector Board member Michelle 

Jonihakis.  L. Barstow seconded the motion.  M. Jonihakis recused herself from the 

vote, memorandum of voting conflict is attached to the Board Minutes.  No further 

discussion, motion passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE DCF REGIONAL ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEED 

JENNIFER OVERLEY* 

 

Jennifer currently serves as the supervisor for licensing in Circuit 7 which includes St. John’s 

County. She has been designated to serve on the board on behalf of Mala Ramatour, Program 

Manager for the Department of Children and Families in accordance with the new State 

established guidelines that two DCF representatives or designees serve on Coalition Boards. 

 

15.  W. Kersey-Graves motioned to approve DCF designee Jennifer Overley.  V. 

Delcomyn seconded the motion.  No further discussion, motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

 

REVIEW OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP-INFORMATIONAL 

 

M. Hanson provided a report to the Board that reviewed the members who have resigned and/or 

gone into an advocate role since the last meeting. Our total board membership is at 23 members 

with the addition of Jennifer Overley, mandated DCF position.  There were no questions or 

comments by the Board. 

 

BOARD ABSENTEEISM LOG 

No Comments.  

 

BOARD COMMENTS 

The four Board members, T. Little, R. Williams, M. Holanchock and J. Stallings, gave an 

overview of the National Summit on Education 2022 Conference they attended in November. 

 

NEXT MEETINGS 

 

The next scheduled meetings are as follows: 

 

 Wednesday, February 1, 2023, 10:30 a.m. – Exec/Admin Committee Conference Call 

Meeting 

 Wednesday, March 8, 2023, 10:30 a.m. –Board Meeting World Golf Village Convention 

Center  
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ADJOURNMENT* 

 

14.  M. Holanchock motioned for adjournment at 2:59 p.m.   

 V. Delcomyn seconded the motion.  No discussion,  motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

 

Minutes Submitted By:  Marie Hanson, Office Manager 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Board of Directors of  
Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
St. Augustine, Florida 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Early Learning Coalition of North 
Florida, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) (the “Coalition”), which comprise the statement of 
financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities and changes in 
net deficit, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements.  

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Coalition as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Coalition and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the 
Coalition’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial 
statements are available to be issued. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user 
based on the financial statements. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued) 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Coalition’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Coalition’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 
time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Supplementary Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, as required by Title 
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General, and 
special audit guidance provided by the Division of Early Learning, is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or 
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards and state financial assistance is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 8, 2023, on 
our consideration of the Coalition’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose 
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Coalition’s 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Coalition’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 
 

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC 
 
Winter Park, Florida  
March 8, 2023 
 
 



Cash and cash equivalents 2,495,243$   
Prepaid expenses 15,813  

Total assets 2,511,056$  

Liabilities
Accounts payable 709,600$  
Accrued expenses 35,530 
Due to related parties 1,939,483  

Total liabilities 2,684,613 

Net deficit
Without donor restrictions (173,557)  

Total liabilities and net deficit 2,511,056$  

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET DEFICIT

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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REVENUES
Government grants:

School Readiness 19,259,176$   
Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten 13,940,519  
Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental 8,708,505  
American Rescue Plan Act 4,386,762  

Local government match 175,233  
Local grants 30,427  

Total revenues 46,500,622  

EXPENSES
Program services:

School Readiness 19,026,143  
Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten 13,927,817  
Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental 8,708,505  
American Rescue Plan Act 4,386,762  
Other 22,388 

Total program services 46,071,615  

Supporting services:
Management and general 419,596  

Total expenses 46,491,211  

Change in net assets 9,411  

Net deficit, beginning of year (182,968)  

Net deficit, end of year (173,557)$   

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET DEFICIT

Year ended June 30, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Coronavirus 
Response American

Voluntary Pre- and Relief Rescue Management
School Readiness Kindergarten Supplemental Plan Act Other and General Total

Pass-through payments to sub-recipients 18,317,504$     13,927,817$    8,708,505$    4,386,762$    -$    -$   45,340,588$    
Salaries and benefits 380,787   -  -  -  -   327,595  708,382   
Match 175,233   -  -  -  -   -   175,233   
Professional fees 31,023   -  -  -  4,500  39,261  74,784   
Quality program expense 50,392   -  -  -  6,066  -   56,458   
Rent expense 34,661   -  -  -  -   16,241  50,902   
Office expenses 17,146   -  -  -  9,620  23,156  49,922   
Travel and conferences 11,941   -  -  -  1,802  7,736  21,479   
Membership subscriptions 5,941   -  -  -  275  5,278  11,494   
Postage and printing 1,515   -  -  -  125  329  1,969   

Total expenses 19,026,143$     13,927,817$    8,708,505$    4,386,762$    22,388$    419,596$    46,491,211$     

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended June 30, 2022

Functional Category 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 9,411$   
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash provided by operating activities:
Change in:

Prepaid expenses (432)  
Accounts payable 642,504  
Accrued expenses (499)  
Due to related parties (4,446)  

Net cash provided by operating activities 646,538  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,848,705  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 2,495,243$      

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended June 30, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
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NOTE A - ORGANIZATION, NATURE OF OPERATIONS, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (continued) 

1. Organization and nature of operations

Early Learning Coalition of Putnam and St. Johns Counties, Inc. (the “Coalition”) was incorporated
on October 6, 2000 as a not-for-profit corporation. The Coalition was formed to operate for the
advancement of charity and education particularly by implementing a comprehensive program of
school readiness services for Florida’s at-risk birth-to-kindergarten population.

On July 1, 2005, the Coalition merged with St. Johns County School Readiness Coalition, Inc., and
changed its name to Early Learning Coalition of Putnam and St. Johns Counties, Inc.

On July 1, 2013, the Coalition merged with the Early Learning Coalition of Clay, Nassau, Baker and
Bradford Counties, Inc., and changed its name to Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. The
Coalition provides funding for child care programs in Putnam, St. Johns, Nassau, Baker, Bradford
and Clay Counties, Florida.

2. Basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

The accompanying financial statements and accompanying schedules have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting. The Coalition reports information regarding its financial position and
activities according to two classes of net assets as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use at the discretion of the Board of Directors
(the “Board”) and/or management for general operating purposes. From time to time the Board
designates a portion of these net assets for specific purposes which makes them unavailable for use
at management’s discretion.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed
restrictions, time and/or purpose restrictions.

The Coalition reports gifts of cash and other assets as revenue with donor restrictions if they are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, the
net assets are reclassified as net assets without donor restriction and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Some net assets with donor restrictions may include a stipulation that assets provided be maintained
permanently (perpetual in nature) while permitting the Coalition to expend the income generated by
the assets in accordance with the provisions of additional donor imposed stipulations or a Board
approved spending policy.

3. Revenue recognition

The Coalition follows Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (ASC 606), which outlines a five-step model whereby revenue is recognized as
performance obligations within a contract are satisfied, and ASU 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities:
Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions
Made (ASC 958), which clarifies how transactions should be accounted for as contributions
(nonreciprocal transactions) or exchange transactions and whether a contribution is conditional.



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
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NOTE A - ORGANIZATION, NATURE OF OPERATIONS, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (continued) 

3. Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from government grants is recorded when earned, which is generally when the allowable
costs of the specific grant provisions have been incurred or the performance of services rendered.
Such revenue is subject to audit by the grantor and, if the examination results in a deficiency of
allowable expenses, the Coalition will be required to refund any deficiencies. Management is of the
opinion that all monies recognized as revenue have been earned as of June 30, 2022. These
amounts are reflected as revenue without donor restrictions if received and expended in the same
year.

Revenue from program fees are recognized when the earnings process is substantially complete and
goods have been delivered or services performed. Revenues from program fees are recognized in
the year to which they relate. As part of the Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten grants, the Coalition receives
advances on revenue which are to be repaid to the state.

4. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

5. Cost allocation

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Deficit. Salaries and other
expenses which are associated with a specific program are charged directly to that program.
Salaries and other program support service expenses which benefit more than one program are
allocated to the various programs based on the relative benefit provided.

6. Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Coalition considers all unrestricted, highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Financial
instruments, which potentially expose the Coalition to concentrations of credit risk, consist principally
of cash bank deposits. The Coalition’s policy is to place its cash investments with high quality
financial institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, which provides coverage
on balances up to $250,000 per depositor per institution. At June 30, 2022, the Coalition had
$2,248,560, in excess of the federally insured limit. The Coalition has never experienced any losses
in such accounts and does not believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash
equivalents.

7. Income taxes

The Coalition is a not-for-profit corporation and is exempt from federal income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As such, its normal activities do not result in any income tax
liability.



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
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NOTE A - ORGANIZATION, NATURE OF OPERATIONS, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (continued) 

7. Income taxes (continued)

Management has analyzed the Coalition’s various federal and state filing positions and believes that
its income tax filing positions and deductions are well documented and supported and that no
accruals for tax liabilities are necessary. Therefore, no reserves for uncertain income tax positions
have been recorded. The Coalition remains subject to examination by the US Internal Revenue
Service for the years ended June 30, 2020 through June 30, 2022.

8. Property and equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at historical cost. Property and equipment with a cost in excess
of $5,000 and a useful life of one or more years is capitalized and depreciated using the straight-line
method of depreciation over the estimated useful life of 5 years.

Property acquired with governmental funds is considered to be owned by the Coalition while used in
the program for which it was purchased or in future authorized programs; however, its disposition as
well as the ownership of any proceeds from the sale of assets therefore is subject to applicable
regulations.

9. Recent accounting pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, that requires lessees to put most leases
on their balance sheets and recognize expenses on their income statements in a manner similar to
today’s capital lease accounting. For lessors, the guidance modifies the classification criteria for
accounting for sales-type and direct financing leases. The new guidance is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2021.

10. Subsequent events

Management has evaluated the effect subsequent events would have on the financial statements
through the date these financial statements were available to be issued on March 8, 2023.

NOTE B - CONCENTRATIONS 

1. Economic dependency

The Coalition is financially dependent on grant funding and operates in a heavily regulated
environment. The operations of the Coalition are subject to the administrative directives, rules and
regulations of federal, state, and local regulatory agencies. Such administrative directives, rules and
regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by
the State of Florida. Such change may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the
related cost, including the additional burden, to comply with a change.



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
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NOTE B – CONCENTRATIONS (continued) 

2. Concentration of credit risk

The activities of the Coalition are conducted in Clay, Nassau, Baker, Bradford, Putnam and St. Johns
Counties, Florida and are supported by funding provided by government agencies. Expenditures
incurred by the Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. and the subgrantees associated with
the execution of various grants are subject to audit and possible disallowance by the grantor agency.
The Coalition would be held responsible for recovery (reimbursement to the grantor agency) of
disallowed amounts incurred by the subgrantee if the subgrantee were not able to do so.
Management believes that if audited, any adjustment for disallowed expenses would be immaterial in
amount.

NOTE C - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2022 is summarized as follows: 

Furniture and fixtures $ 6,498  

Less: accumulated depreciation (6,498)  

Property and equipment, net $ -  

NOTE D - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Certain members of the Board are mandated in the “School Readiness Act.” Related party members 
include representation from Episcopal Children’s Services, a provider of government grants to the 
Coalition, and other representatives from private and public sector industries. Total payments to these 
related organizations during the year ended June 30, 2022 were $45,340,588 and accounts payable to 
them at June 30, 2022 were $1,939,483. 

NOTE E - RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Coalition established a tax deferred retirement plan effective for all qualifying employees. All regular 
full time employees are eligible to participate in the plan. The Coalition will contribute up to a 6% match 
of the employee’s salary. The Coalition provided matching contributions of $20,071 for retirement 
benefits to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2022. Employees are immediately vested in their 
contributions and the matching contributions. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
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NOTE F - LEASES AND COMMITMENTS 

The Coalition has non-cancelable operating leases for the rental of office space in Palatka, St. 
Augustine, and Orange Park, Florida, and various office equipment. Rent expense for the year ended 
June 30, 2022 totaled $50,902. The future minimum lease payments are as follows:  

Years ending June 30:

2023 $ 33,658 

2024 5,136  

2025 4,280  

$ 43,074 

NOTE G - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one 
program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is 
consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include salaries and benefits, professional fees, 
travel and conferences, rent expense, office expenses, membership subscriptions and postage and 
printing, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort.  

NOTE H - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES 

The Coalition’s financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial position date for 
general expenditures are as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,495,243  

Accounts payable 709,600  

Accrued expenses 35,530 

Due to related parties 1,939,483  

Total financial liabilities available within one year 2,684,613  

Total net financial assets available within one year $ (189,370)  

As part of the Coalition’s liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be 
available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. The Coalition receives 
the majority of its funding from federal and state grants passed through DEL which are on a reimbursable 
basis. Throughout the year, the Coalition receives advances and reimbursements each month to cover 
incurred expenses. To help manage unanticipated liquidity needs, the Coalition at times receives 
advances from DEL. 
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NOTE I - RISK AND UNCERTAINTY 

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHO") announced a global health emergency 
because of a new strain of coronavirus (the "COVID-19 outbreak") and the risks to the international 
community as the virus spreads globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified 
the COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase in exposure globally.  

The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report. As such, it is 
uncertain as to the full magnitude that the pandemic will have on the Coalition’s financial condition, 
liquidity, and future results of operations. Management is actively monitoring the global situation on its 
financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, industry, and workforce. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
To the Board of Directors of 
Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  
St. Augustine, Florida 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States , the financial 
statements of Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.(a nonprofit organization) (the 
“Coalition”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the 
related statements of activities and changes in net deficit, and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated March 8, 2023  

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Coalition’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Coalition’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Coalition’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we 
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Coalition’s financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
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Purpose of This Report  

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Coalition’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Coalition’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC  
 
Winter Park, Florida 
March 8, 2023 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
PROGRAM AND STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND STATE OF FLORIDA CHAPTER 10.650,   

RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
 

To the Board of Directors of  
Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
St. Augustine, Florida 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and State Project  

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program and State Project 

We have audited Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.’s (the “Coalition”) compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance 
Supplement and the requirements described in the Department of Financial Services’ State 
Projects Compliance Supplement, that could have a direct and material effect on each of the 
Coalition’s major federal programs and state projects for the year ended June 30, 2022. The 
Coalition’s major federal programs and state projects are identified in the summary of auditor’s 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  

In our opinion, the Coalition’s complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs and state projects for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program and State Project 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance), and State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General 
(Chapter 10.650), and special audit guidance provided by the Division of Early Learning. Our 
responsibilities under those standards, the Uniform Guidance, and Chapter 10.650 are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Coalition’s and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and state project. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determination of the Coalition’s compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above.  

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with 
the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements applicable to the Coalition’s federal programs and state projects.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with 
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and 
express an opinion on the Coalition’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance, and Chapter 10.650, will always detect material 
noncompliance when it exists.  
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance (continued) 

The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Coalition’s 
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards, the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.650, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the Coalition’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred 
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 Obtain an understanding of the Coalition’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.650, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Coalition’s internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance  

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program or state project on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program or state project will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program or state project that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as defined above.  However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.650. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 

Moss, Krusick & Associates, LLC  
 
Winter Park, Florida  
March 8, 2023 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

June 30, 2022 
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Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results 

Financial Statements 

1. Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified 

2. Internal control over financial reporting:
a. Material weakness(es) identified? No 
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses? None Reported 

3. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No 

Federal Awards 

1. Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmodified 

2. Internal control over major programs:
a. Material weakness(es) identified? No 
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses? None Reported 

 3. Audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Uniform Guidance? No 

4. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs $970,633 

5. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 

Identifications of major programs: 

Name of Federal Program   ALN 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families  93.558 
Child Care and Development Fund (CCDF) Cluster 93.575, 93.596 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

June 30, 2022 
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Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results (continued) 

State Financial Assistance 

1. Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major projects: Unmodified 

2. Internal control over major projects:
a. Material weakness(es) identified? No 
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses? None Reported 

 3. Audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with the Florida Single Audit Act and

 Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General? No 

4. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B projects $750,000 

Identification of major projects: 

Name of State Project  CSFA Number 
Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten 48.108 

Section II - Enhanced Fields System (EFS Mod) monthly reconciliation 

1. EFS Mod reconciled monthly Yes 

2. Processes in place to identify and correct errors during
monthly reconciliations to EFS Mod Yes 

3. Coalition’s financial records reconcile and agree to EFS Mod
records as of program year ended June 30, 2022 Yes 

4. Audit work papers documenting verification of reconciliations
available to OEL staff Yes 

Section III - Financial Statement Findings 

 No current year findings (no corrective action plan or management letter required) 

Section IV - Federal Award and State Projects Findings and Questioned Costs 

None (there are no items related to Federal Awards and State financial assistance required to be 
reported in the management letter, therefore no management letter issued) 

Section V - Status of Prior Year Audit Findings 
There were no prior year audit findings. 



ALN Award Transfer to 
CSFA Number Expenditures Sub-recipient

Federal Awards:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through State of Florida's Division of Early Learning

Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 EL432 9,958,781$      9,471,850$      

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds
   of the Child Care and Development Fund 93.596 EL432 5,617,407  5,342,745   

American Rescue Plan Act 93.575 EL432 4,386,762  4,386,762   

Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental
Appropriations Funds 93.575 EL432 8,680,378  8,680,378  

Total Child Care and Development Cluster 28,643,328  27,881,735   

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 EL432 3,562,813  3,388,610  

Preschool Development Grants 93.434 EL432 104,171  99,078  

Social Services Block Grant 93.667 EL432 16,004  15,221  

U.S. Department of Education
Passed through State of Florida's Division of Early Learning
Education Stabilization Fund 84.425D EL432 28,127  28,127  

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 32,354,443$    31,412,771$    

State Financial Assistance:
State of Florida Department of Education
Passed through State of Florida's Division of Early Learning

Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten 48.108 EL432 13,940,519$    13,927,817$    
.

Total Expenditures of State Financial Assistance 13,940,519$    13,927,817$    

Basis of Presentation

Indirect Cost Rate

The Coalition has elected to not use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate for its federal programs and state projects for the year ended
June 30, 2022. The indirect cost rates used on the Coalition's federal programs and state projects are determined by the relevant federal or
state agency.

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is presented on the accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, State of Florida Chapter
10.650, Rules of Auditor General, and the Florida Department of Fiscal Service's State Projects Compliance Supplement . Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 

Grantor/Program Title

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Year ended June 30, 2022

See independent auditor's report. 
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MEMORANDUM 

 

To:  All Board Members 
From:  Tajaro Dixon, Grants and Operations Manager 
Date:  January 11, 2023 
Subject:  2022/2023 Second Quarter Program Update and Quality Assurance Activities 

Coalition Activities:   

 The Division of Early Learning (DEL) Fiscal Monitoring occurred October 31 – November 3, 2022.  This is in the 
Draft Report stage as of today’s date. 

 The DEL Accountability Review (for 21/22) was completed and the Coalition received the Final Report 
December 7, 2022.  There was a total of 12 compliance issues.  Three were the Coalition’s (regarding 
background screening documentation/policy, board roster updates, and board recusal).  The other nine were 
programmatic and routine in nature.  All corrective actions were completed before the final report, and 
acknowledged in the report.  

 The Coalition/Episcopal Children’s Services 2021/2022 Contract closed-out on schedule and with no issues. 

 Coalition staff started their annual review of Information Technology Policies and Procedures and anti-virus 
refresher trainings.  

 The entirely updated School Readiness (SR) Plan for 2022-2024 was submitted to DEL ahead of schedule/DEL 
deadline.   

 The Coalition received final DEL approvals for all outstanding 2019-2021 SR Plan amendments. 

 DEL released School Readiness updated program guidance for 22/23, and the Coalition was able to make all 
needed updates for the second quarter monitoring period. 

 Coalition staff completed the annual review and updates of the CEO Succession Plan Handoff Report. 
 

Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) Contract Monitoring:  
The 2022/2023 First Quarter Monitoring was performed November 4 - 18, 2022.  This monitoring included all DEL required 
“eligibility” criteria for School Readiness and VPK.  Additional areas of review were the Annual Data and Data Security 
Systems Review and American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Provider Application Monitoring.  From this review, there were only 
three compliance issues.   These required staff refresher training sessions and some required corrections during monitoring.  
(Two of the compliance issues involved new staff to the position.) The staff trainings were held and corrections were made 
before the final report.   
 
The 2022/2023 Second Quarter Monitoring is scheduled for February 13 – 27, 2023.  This monitoring will include all 
DEL required “eligibility” criteria for School Readiness and VPK.  Additional areas of review will be Contract 
Certifications/Assurances Verifications, Non-direct Costs Review (1st and 2nd quarters combined), and ARPA Provider 
Application Monitoring. 
 
ALL full reports are available upon request. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 

DESCRIPTION Episcopal Children’s Services 2022/2023 Contract Amendment #0003-22: 
Reason for 
Recommended 
Action 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Revisions: 
 

A. Items #1-3 were to update the School Readiness budgeted amounts per the 
January 26, 2003 Notice of Award and to add grant award information for 
“Other Direct Services” on bottom of contract attachment 9 (School 
Readiness Budget). 

 
 

 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
 

A. ECS’s contract would not have the correct budgeted amounts for the School 
Readiness program, nor the grant award information. 
 
 

How the Action 
will be 
accomplished 

Approval of ECS 2022/2023 amendment #0003-22, and party signatures. 
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Amendment 0003-22 Primary Services Contract 
Episcopal Children’s Services 

 
 
THIS AMENDMENT, entered into between the Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. hereinafter referred 
to as the Coalition, and Episcopal Children’s Services, hereinafter referred to as the Contractor, amends the 2022-23 
primary services contract as follows: 
 

 
Item # Page # Headings and Text 

1 9 C.  RESOURCE MANAGEMENT (SR) 

   
Pursuant to the Request for Proposal and the Contractor’s signed response, 
and the fact that this contract is upon a cost-reimbursement method 
of payment, the CONTRACTOR shall be fiscally responsible pursuant to 
the following: 

 
1. BUDGET SURPLUS/DEFICIT:  The Contractor shall serve children 

with the slot dollars provided under this contract, unless the available 
School Readiness grant funding would not financially provide for all 
slots.  Regardless of the total amount of funding for slots, the 
Contractor will ensure no less than 78% of School Readiness grant 
funds will be used for slot funding.  The 78% calculation includes direct 
services, as defined in the most recent version of the DEL Standard 
Codes document, and local match.  The slot funding should not be 
expended over the contracted budget amount. The Contractor further 
agrees reimbursements under this contract shall be up to, and are 
capped at the total budgeted amount of funding for direct child care 
slot funding which is $16,914,462  $15,531,239, unless written 
arrangements are made with the Coalition to move additional funds 
into the slot budget. This funding is inclusive of the annual DEL School 
Readiness Grant Award including local match funds (when applicable), 
and is based on availability of funds.  If county allocations are 
reduced at the state level, contracts will be amended 
accordingly. Gold Seal payments are subject to adjustments 
due to budget constraints.  Additionally, the Contractor shall be 
responsible for actively soliciting and obtaining local match funds for 
children in School Readiness Programs to be used only for slots.   

 
2 21 VII. Method of Payment (SR) 

 
   

This is a cost-reimbursement contract.  The Coalition shall pay the contractor for 
the delivery of service provided in accordance with the terms of this contract for a 
total dollar amount up to and not to exceed $20,019,037  $18,519,037.  
This funding is inclusive of the annual DEL School Readiness Grant Award 
which does not include local match funds, and is based on availability of 
funds. If county allocations are reduced at the state level, contracts will 
be amended accordingly. Up to and no more than $420,000  $400,000 
may be allocated to adminsitrative expenditures.  Local match will be 



 
 
 
 

2 
 
 
 

reimbursed based on funding from match raised from local grants up to the 
amount earned or the amount of the local grants, whichever is less. 

 
 

3 77-78 Attachment 9 School Readiness Budget 
 

   
(Attached, pages 3-6.  Pages 5-6 replace the original contract attachment and 
is incorporated as part of this amendment.) 
 

  END OF AMENDMENTS 
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ATTACHMENT 9 
SCHOOL READINESS BUDGET (deletions) 
 

State of Florida Notice of Award No. EL433 
CFDA# / Name Federal Award # 

93.558 / TANF and MOE 2201FLTANF (20.63%) 
93.575 / CCDF Discretionary, ARPA G2201FLCCDD and 2101FLCDC6 (58.89%) 

93.596 / CCDF Mandatory  G2201FLCCDF (4.68%) 
93.596 / CCDF Matching and MOE G2201FLCCDM (15.75%) 

93.667 / SSBG G2201FLS0SR (0.05%) 

 
 

Grand Total 100% 

 
Other Direct Services:  

 

Description OCA 

 ECS   
 Dollar   
 Amounts 
  

  
Coalition  
Dollar 
Amounts 
  

  
Total ECS 
and ELC 
  

General Administration 97BBA, 97FIR, 97LCA $420,000 $560,403 $980,403 

Non-direct Services 97BBD 318,093  318,093 
Systems 97SYS    

Eligibility Determination 97BDE 711,990  711,990 

Quality  
97QOO, 97QHS, 97QCS, 97QST, 
97QCR, 97QAS, 97QTA, 97QPD, 
97QPT  

710,972 555,090 1,266,062 

Infant & Toddler Services 97INT, 97ICR, 97IAS, 97ICS  468,750 25,000 493,750 

Inclusion 97QIN 116,910  116,910 
Resource & Referral 97Q14 357,860  357,860 
Total Non-Slots  (Non-Direct) 3,104,575 1,140,493 4,245,068 
SR Matching Funding 173,799  173,799 
Slots 16,740,663  16,740,663 

Total Slots  (Direct Services) 16,914,462  16,914,462 

Grand Totals  $20,019,037 $1,140,493 $21,159,530 

     NOA Total 

Gold Seal Payments  97GSQ  $875,326  $875,326 

Performance Funding QPIIPD,QPICA, QPIPQ, QPICQ  $837,244  $837,244 
Special Needs SPCRQ $105,686  $105,686 
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Additional School Readiness-Related Programs and Funding  
(Exclusive of DEL School Readiness Grant Award Funding) 

A. (A.R.P.A.) The American Rescue Plan Act – Stabilization 
Funding (EL433) 
 

CFDA# 93.575/Child Care Development Fund (CCDF) 
Federal Award No. 2101FLCDC6 and 2101FLCSC6 – 100% funding 
[amount includes up to 5% ($2,677,448) for General Administration] 
ARPA Stabilization Funds 
ARPA Build a World Class Workforce Initiatives 
Total 

 
 
 
 
 

$50,950,723 
2,598,239 

$53,548,962 

B.  Preschool Development Grant (PDG) (EL433) 
CFDA# 93.434/ESSA Florida Preschool Development Grants Birth 
Through Five, Federal Award Nos. 
Federal Award No. 90TP0068-03-01 – 100% funding 
[amount includes up to 5% ($3,750) for General Administration] 
Total 

 
 
 
 

$74,990 

C. C.R.R.S.A.  (Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Act) 
Funding (EL433) 

CFDA# 93.575/Child Care Development Fund (CCDF) 
Federal Award No. 2101FLCDC6 – 100% funding 
[amounts include up to 5% ($107,234) for General Administration] 
Phase V and VI Provider Grants 
CRRSA VPK Closure Days 
CRRSA ELC Program Outreach and Awareness 
CRRSA ELC Workforce Incentives 
Total 

 
 
 
 

  $953,860 
43,152 

136,599 
1,011,076 

$2,144,687 

D.  Early Learning Florida (through the University of Florida 
Lastinger Center) 
Effective dates 09/01/22 – 08/31/23 
Total (total dollar amount up to and not to exceed) 
  
Effective dates 08/01/22 – 06/30/23 (contract SR101) 
Total (total dollar amount up to and not to exceed) 
 

 
 

$13,000 
 

                                   $50,000 

E. School Readiness Program Assessments (EL433) 
CFDA# 93.575/Child Care Development Fund (CCDF) 
Federal Award No. G2201FLCCDD – 100% funding 
Total 

 
 

$34,672 
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        ATTACHMENT 9 
SCHOOL READINESS BUDGET (additions) 
 

State of Florida Notice of Award No. EL433 
CFDA# / Name Federal Award # 

93.558 / TANF and MOE 2201FLTANF (22.16%) 
93.575 / CCDF Discretionary, ARPA G2201FLCCDD and 2101FLCDC6 (52.26%) 

93.596 / CCDF Mandatory  G2201FLCCDF (5.03%) 
93.596 / CCDF Matching and MOE G2201FLCCDM (20.50%) 

93.667 / SSBG G2201FLS0SR (0.06%) 

 
 

Grand Total 100% 

 
Other Direct Services: (EL433) [CFDA #93.575/Child Care Development Fund (CCDF Discretionary)] 

Description OCA 

 ECS   
 Dollar   
 Amounts 
  

  
Coalition  
Dollar 
Amounts 
  

  
Total ECS 
and ELC 
  

General Administration 97BBA, 97FIR, 97LCA $400,000 $560,403 $960,403 

Non-direct Services 97BBD 385,000  385,000 
Systems 97SYS    

Eligibility Determination 97BDE 600,000  600,000 

Quality  
97QOO, 97QHS, 97QCS, 97QST, 
97QCR, 97QAS, 97QTA, 97QPD, 
97QPT  

732,798 555,090 1,287,888 

Infant & Toddler Services 97INT, 97ICR, 97IAS, 97ICS  410,000 25,000 435,000 

Inclusion 97QIN 110,000  110,000 
Resource & Referral 97Q14 350,000  350,000 
Total Non-Slots  (Non-Direct) 2,987,798 1,140,493 4,128,291 
SR Matching Funding 173,799  173,799 
Slots 15,357,440  15,357,440 

Total Slots  (Direct Services) 15,531,239  15,531,239 

Grand Totals  $18,519,037 $1,140,493 $19,659,530 

     NOA Total 

Gold Seal Payments  
97GSQ (Fed Awards; CARES -
2001FLCCC3, CRRSA-2101FLCCC5-
100%, ARPA-2101FLCDC6) 

$875,326  $875,326 

Performance Funding QPIIPD,QPICA, QPIPQ, QPICQ 
(Fed Award ARPA-2101FLCDC6-100%) $837,244  $837,244 

Special Needs SPCRQ 
(Fed Award ARPA-2101FLCDC6-100%) $105,686  $105,686 
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Additional School Readiness-Related Programs and Funding  
(Exclusive of DEL School Readiness Grant Award Funding) 

B. (A.R.P.A.) The American Rescue Plan Act – Stabilization 
Funding (EL433) 
 

CFDA# 93.575/Child Care Development Fund (CCDF) 
Federal Award No. 2101FLCDC6 and 2101FLCSC6 – 100% funding 
[amount includes up to 5% ($2,677,448) for General Administration] 
ARPA Stabilization Funds 
ARPA Build a World Class Workforce Initiatives 
Total 

 
 
 
 
 

$50,950,723 
2,598,239 

$53,548,962 

B.  Preschool Development Grant (PDG) (EL433) 
CFDA# 93.434/ESSA Florida Preschool Development Grants Birth 
Through Five, Federal Award Nos. 
Federal Award No. 90TP0068-03-01 – 100% funding 
[amount includes up to 5% ($3,750) for General Administration] 
Total 

 
 
 
 

$74,990 

D. C.R.R.S.A.  (Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Act) 
Funding (EL433) 

CFDA# 93.575/Child Care Development Fund (CCDF) 
Federal Award No. 2101FLCDC6 – 100% funding 
[amounts include up to 5% ($107,234) for General Administration] 
Phase V and VI Provider Grants 
CRRSA VPK Closure Days 
CRRSA ELC Program Outreach and Awareness 
CRRSA ELC Workforce Incentives 
Total 

 
 
 
 

  $953,860 
43,152 

136,599 
1,011,076 

$2,144,687 

D.  Early Learning Florida (through the University of Florida 
Lastinger Center) 
Effective dates 09/01/22 – 08/31/23 
Total (total dollar amount up to and not to exceed) 
  
Effective dates 08/01/22 – 06/30/23 (contract SR101) 
Total (total dollar amount up to and not to exceed) 
 

 
 

$13,000 
 

                                   $50,000 

E. School Readiness Program Assessments (EL433) 
CFDA# 93.575/Child Care Development Fund (CCDF) 
Federal Award No. G2201FLCCDD – 100% funding 
Total 

 
 

$34,672 
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THIS AMENDMENT shall begin on March 8, 2023, or the date, on which the amendment has been signed by both 
parties, whichever is later. 

All provisions in the contract and any attachments thereto in conflict with this amendment shall be and are hereby 
changed to conform to this amendment. 

All provisions not in conflict with this amendment are still in effect and are to be performed at the level specified in 
the contract. 

This amendment is hereby made a part of the contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this 7 page amendment to be executed by their officials 
thereunto duly authorized. 

 

                                                                     
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF   EPISCOPAL CHILDREN’S SERVICES, 
NORTH FLORIDA     INC.  
   
 
 
NAME        NAME        
 
TITLE        TITLE        
 
SIGNED       SIGNED       
 
DATE        DATE        
 
 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of revisions to the 2022-2023 budget for Early Learning Coalition of 
North Florida.   
 

Reason for 
Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

On Jan 26, 2023, The Division of Early Learning sent a revision to the Notice 
of Award for the 2022-2023 Grant Year.  Compared to our previously 
approved budget this revision reflects the actual NOA for FY2022-23. 
 
The allocation of these funds between ECS and ELCNF has been agreed to by 
both entities. 
 
If not approved, we will not have a budget that reconciles to the Notice of 
Award. 

 
How the Action will be 
accomplished 

Board Approval and submission to DEL. 

 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida
FY 2022-2023

6/15/2022 9/14/2022 9/29/2022 1/26/2023
2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023

 Notice of Awards Initial Budget Proposed Budget Proposed Budget Proposed Budget
School Readiness (SR) 20,020,000$                22,892,970$                  22,906,772$                       21,512,458$                       
PDG Services 180,000 74,990 74,990 74,990
CRRSA 500,000 2,144,687 2,144,687 2,144,687
ESSER 0 87,905 87,905 87,905
ARP 16,000,000 27,735,669 53,654,648 53,548,962
Voluntary PreKindergarten (VPK) 14,000,000 19,867,462 19,867,462 19,867,462
       Total  Notice of Award 50,700,000$                72,803,683$                  98,736,464$                       97,236,464$                       

Subrecipient Expense
School Readiness (SR) 19,000,000$                21,752,477$                  21,766,279$                       20,371,965$                       
PDG Services 180,000 74,990 74,990 74,990
CRRSA 500,000 2,144,687 2,144,687 2,144,687
ESSER 0 87,905 87,905 87,905
ARP 16,000,000 27,735,669 53,654,648 53,548,962
Voluntary PreKindergarten (VPK) 13,940,000 19,803,067 19,803,067 19,803,067
Total Subrecipient Expense 49,620,000$                71,598,795$                  97,531,576$                       96,031,576$                       

Grant Funds Available to ELC of North FL 1,080,000$                  1,204,888$                    1,204,888$                         1,204,888$                         

Other Donations and Revenue `
Interest Income 600$                              600$                                600$                                     600$                                     
Clay Electric Foundation 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Quality Teacher's Conference 5,800 6,000 6,000 6,000
Miscellaneous Donations 3,900 3,500 3,500 3,500

Total Revenues 1,105,300$                  1,229,988$                    1,229,988$                         1,229,988$                         

ELC of North Florida Estimated Expense
Salaries 595,000$                      595,000$                        595,000$                             595,000$                             
PR Taxes 59,500 65,000 65,000 65,000
Health Insurance & HSA Contributions 132,000 150,000 150,000 150,000
Pension 30,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
Life, Disability, and WC 9,000 18,000 18,000 18,000
Staff Development 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Contract Services 11,000 12,000 12,000 12,000
Auditing 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Legal 500 500 500 500
Printing & Reproduction 1,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Repairs & Maintenance 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Office Sites - Occupancy 55,000 65,000 65,000 65,000
Postage, Freight & Delivery 2,500 4,000 4,000 4,000
Rentals - Office Equipment 4,500 6,000 6,000 6,000
Office Supplies 10,000 12,000 12,000 12,000
Communications 19,000 22,000 22,000 22,000
D & O Insurance 2,600 2,700 2,700 2,700
General Liability 8,600 8,700 8,700 8,700
Equipment <$1,000 3,000 4,500 4,500 4,500
Equipment >$1,000 3,400 4,000 4,000 4,000
Travel - In State 6,000 8,000 8,000 8,000
Travel - Out of State 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000
Travel - Local 4,000 7,000 7,000 7,000
Bank Fees 200 500 500 500
Software/Licenses/Support 9,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Web Service 30,000 35,000 35,000 35,000
Other employee expenditures 3,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
ADP Fees 7,000 9,000 9,000 9,000
Dues & Subscriptions 12,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Taxes, Licenses and Fees 500 800 800 800
Misc. - Other Current Charges 5,000 9,000 9,000 9,000
Quality Program 50,000 65,000 65,000 65,000

Total ELC North Florida Estimated Expense 1,105,300 1,216,700 1,216,700 1,216,700

Surplus or (Loss) -$                               13,288$                          13,288$                               13,288$                               



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 

 

DESCRIPTION Approval of our 2023-2024 COOP (Continuity of Operations 
Plan) 
 

Reason for Recommended Action The COOP (Continuity of Operations Plan) establishes policy 
and guidance to ensure the continued execution of the mission-
essential functions continue should an emergency threaten or 
incapacitates operations and require the relocation of selected 
personnel and functions of the Coalition and/or its 
subcontractor(s).   
 
The COOP is to be revised if needed and submitted to OEL 
before May 1st of every year.  The revisions made to this year’s 
COOP are: 

• Changes in names, titles and contact information. 
• Changes in ECS Office Addresses 
• Changes were made to reflect the processes that ECS 

has in place if they were to activate their COOP. 
• Attachment 9 added for Infectious Disease Emergency 

Addendum 
How the Action will be 
accomplished 

Approval of the 2023-2024 COOP and then it will be 
submitted to OEL. 

  
 



 

 

 

This attachment removed from this board 
packet version, as it contains personally 

protected information 
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Attachment 6b 
 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 

BOARD MEMBERSHIP ROSTER 
 
 

ELCNF Board Approved September 8, 2021 June 15, 20222 Early Coalition of North Florida  
Submitted to TDixon for plan amendment October 11, 2021 June 23, 2022 
OEL Approved  July 15,2022  
Cou
nt or 

 
N/A 

Designation in 
F.S. 1002.83(3) 

and (4) 

Voting 
Member 

Name 
Address 

Telephone Number 
Fax Number 

Email Address 

Affiliation 
and/or 

Employment 

For multi-
county 
coalitions, 
indicate the 
county the 
member 
represents 

Date 
Appoint

ed 

Length of 
Current 

Term and 
Date it 

Will End 

Ter
m 

1 Private Sector; 
Chair, 
appointed by 
the Governor 
(Two, 4 yr. 
terms) 

Yes Vacant Private Sector;  
Prudential 
Network Realty 

    

2 Private sector 
appointed by 
the Governor 

Yes Cranford R. Coleman 
577 Golden Links 
Drive 
Orange Park, FL 32073 
(904) 614-7315  
rcoleman7315@outloo
k.com 

Private Sector; 
Baronco 
Management 
Consultants, Inc 

Clay Nov. 22, 
2013 

4 Year 
April 30, 
2016 

1 

3 Private sector 
appointed by 
the Governor 

Yes Brian H. Graham 
PO Box 9630 
Fleming Island, FL 
32006 
904-376-5288 
BrianHGraham@gmail
.com 
BHG@AmericanaAdvi
sors.com 

Private Sector; 
Dixie Strategies, 
LLC. 

Clay  May 14, 
2015 

4 Year 
April 30, 
2019 

2 

4 Department of 
Children & 
Family Services 
circuit 
administrator or 
designee 

Yes Cassandra 
VirgoAndrew Warnock 
Dept. of Children and 
Families 
Child Care Regulations 
5920 Arlington 
Expressway 
Jacksonville, FL  3211 
Ph:904-485-9493 
Fax: 904-723-5315 
Cassandra.virgo@myflf
amilies.comAndrew.wa
rnock@myflfamilies.co
m 
Rebecca Chandler 
Dept. of Children and 
Families 210 N. 
Palmetto St. Daytona 
Beach, FL  32114 
Rebecca.chandler@myf
amilies.com 

County 
Department of 
Children and 
Families 

Northeast 
Region: 
Baker, 
Bradford, 
Clay, Nassau, 
Putnam, St. 
Johns 

June 
2022 
Decemb
er 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 
2022 

June 2026 
4 Year 
December 
2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4 Year 
March 2026 

1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 

5 District 
superintendent 

Yes  
Jessica Stallings 
Putnam County 

Putnam Clay 
County School 
District 

Putnam Clay  March 
202 June 
2021 

4 year 
March 2026 
June 2025 

1 

mailto:BrianHGraham@gmail.com
mailto:BrianHGraham@gmail.com
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Cou
nt or 

 
N/A 

Designation in 
F.S. 1002.83(3) 

and (4) 

Voting 
Member 

Name 
Address 

Telephone Number 
Fax Number 

Email Address 

Affiliation 
and/or 

Employment 

For multi-
county 
coalitions, 
indicate the 
county the 
member 
represents 

Date 
Appoint

ed 

Length of 
Current 

Term and 
Date it 

Will End 

Ter
m 

of schools or 
designee 

School District, 200 
Reid Street, Palatka, 
FL  32177 
Jstallings@my.putnam
schools.org Bianca 
Montoro 
4539 Tarragon Ave. 
Middleburg, FL 32068 
Ph: 804-316-8775 
Bianca.Montoro@my
oneclay.net 

6 Regional 
workforce 
board executive 
director or 
designee 

Yes Renee L. Williams 
CareerSource 
Northeast Florida 
District Director, Clay 
& Putnam 
1845 Town Center 
Blvd., Suite 150,  
Fleming Island, 
FL  32003 
(904) 213-3888  ext. 
2076 
Fax (904) 278-5696 
www.careersourcenort
heastflorida.com 

Regional 
Workforce Board; 
CareerSource 

District 8: 
Clay, Baker, 
Nassau, 
Putnam and 
St. Johns 

Sept. 17, 
2014 
Second 
term 
start 
date: 
Septemb
er 2018 
Third 
term 
start 
Sept 
2022 

4 year 
September 
2022 
 
 
 
 
 
Sept 2026 

2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3 

7 County health 
department 
director or 
designee 

Yes Eleanor 
HoffmanJessica Bishop 
Administrator Florida 
Department of Health, 
Putnam County 
2801 Kennedy Street 
Palatka, FL 32177 
Ph: (386) 326-3254 
Ekeabir,Hoffman@flh
ealth.gov  
Jessica.Bishop@flhealt
h.gov 
 

County Health 
Department; 
Putnam County 

Putnam Sept 
2022  
June 
2021 

4 year Sept. 
2026     
June 2025 

1 

8 President of a 
Florida College 
System 
institution or his 
or her 
permanent 
designee 

Yes Dr. Myrna Allen 
St. Johns River State 
College 
Dean of Teacher 
Education 
myrnaallen@sjrstate.ed
u 
(386) 312-4242 

Community 
College; St. Johns 
River State 
College 

Clay, 
Putnam, St. 
Johns 

Sept. 17, 
2014 
Second 
term 
start 
date: 
Septemb
er 2018 
Third 
term 
start date 
Sept 
2022 

4 Year 
September 
2022 
 
 
 
 
 
4 year 2026 

3      
2 

mailto:Jstallings@my.putnamschools.org
mailto:Jstallings@my.putnamschools.org
http://cp.mcafee.com/d/k-Kr6xEi4zqb2dNNEVsLtATsSDss--OVt4srhKy--yUyqekjqtNPXXbBQjhOrhKMYYUqem63hOraA8JGKOYZ05uvq5oP9KDRz93u00C_fJ2IpATjWNAxL00jqvCzCUV5x_HYC-eohKNRXBQjhOMzPbz3ZPhOPORQr8FGTshVkffGhBrwqrhdFCXYyMCY-ehojd79KVI05ro_YqlrzrUlzcD-QCWvmcAdVv3sj4zPVqHg5mSf_6BmUS-7KDYKrj73An3ob6Azh0cRSa1Ew6_-sE4jh02_lB13UBPh1sQsCy14sq84m3h0zt9C-GCS63vrDP_V0mY8Wt
http://cp.mcafee.com/d/k-Kr6xEi4zqb2dNNEVsLtATsSDss--OVt4srhKy--yUyqekjqtNPXXbBQjhOrhKMYYUqem63hOraA8JGKOYZ05uvq5oP9KDRz93u00C_fJ2IpATjWNAxL00jqvCzCUV5x_HYC-eohKNRXBQjhOMzPbz3ZPhOPORQr8FGTshVkffGhBrwqrhdFCXYyMCY-ehojd79KVI05ro_YqlrzrUlzcD-QCWvmcAdVv3sj4zPVqHg5mSf_6BmUS-7KDYKrj73An3ob6Azh0cRSa1Ew6_-sE4jh02_lB13UBPh1sQsCy14sq84m3h0zt9C-GCS63vrDP_V0mY8Wt
mailto:myrnaallen@sjrstate.edu
mailto:myrnaallen@sjrstate.edu
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Cou
nt or 

 
N/A 

Designation in 
F.S. 1002.83(3) 

and (4) 

Voting 
Member 

Name 
Address 

Telephone Number 
Fax Number 

Email Address 

Affiliation 
and/or 

Employment 

For multi-
county 
coalitions, 
indicate the 
county the 
member 
represents 

Date 
Appoint

ed 

Length of 
Current 

Term and 
Date it 

Will End 

Ter
m 

9 Member 
appointed by 
Board of 
County 
Commissioners 
or the governing 
board of a 
municipality 

Yes Christian Whitehurst 
500 San Sebastian View 
St. Augustine, FL 
32084 
P: (904) 209- 0301 
bcc1cwhitehurst@sjcfl
.us 

Board of County 
Commissioners or 
municipal 
governing board; 
St. Johns Board of 
County 
Commissioners 

St. Johns 
 
 
 

 
 
March 
2021 

4 Year 
 
March 2025 

1 

10 Head Start 
Director 

Yes Brian McElhone 
102 Martin Luther 
King Ave.  
St. Augustine, FL  
32084 
Ph: 904-547-8963 
Brian.McElhone@stjo
hns.k12.fl.us 

Head Start; 
Director, Early 
Childhood 
Services and 
District 
Assessment 
Development 

St. Johns July 21, 
2017 
Second 
Term 
Date: 
July 
2021 

4 Year 
July 2025 

2 

11 Representative 
of private for-
profit child care 
providers 
 (One, 4 yr. 
term) 

Yes Patricia Tauch 
3050 Moody Avenue 
Orange Park, FL 32065 
Ph: (904) 264-9959 
Fax: (904) 264-2831 
Opkinc1960@gmail.co
m 

Private for-profit 
child care; OPK 
Inc dba Orange 
Park Kindergarten 

Clay March 
2019 

4 Year 
March 2023 

1 

12 Representative 
of faith based 
child care 
providers 
(One 4 yr. term 
and must rotate 
counties) 

Yes Theresa Little 
2468 County Rd. 210 
St. Johns, FL 32259 
Ph: (904) 429-7637 
Fax: (904) 726-1791 
tlittle@ctkcatholic.co
m 
 
 

Faith Based Child 
Care; Diocese of 
St. Augustine 

St. Johns Dec. 7, 
2016 
Second 
Term 
Date: 
Dec  
March 
20201 

4 Year  
12/2020 
March 2025 
 
12/2024 

1 2 
 
 
 
2 
 
 
 

13 Representative 
of program 
under federal 
Individuals with 
Disabilities 
Education Act 

Yes Marsha Peacock 
Florida 
Diagostic&Learning 
Resources, NEFEC 
.3841 Reid Street 
Palatka, FL 32177 
Ph: (386) 329-3817 
Peacockm@nefec.org 

Director of 
Instructional 
Services for 
Florida Diagnostic 
& Learning 
Resources System 
for the North 
East Florida 
Education 
Consortium 

Putnam Septemb
er 2021 

4 Year  
September 
2025 

1 

N/A Children 
services council 
or juvenile 
welfare board 
chair or 
executive 
director 

Yes, if 
applicable 

N/A      

N/A Child care 
licensing agency 
head 

Yes, if 
applicable 

N/A      

mailto:Brian.McElhone@stjohns.k12.fl.us
mailto:Brian.McElhone@stjohns.k12.fl.us
mailto:tlittle@ctkcatholic.com
mailto:tlittle@ctkcatholic.com
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Cou
nt or 

 
N/A 

Designation in 
F.S. 1002.83(3) 

and (4) 

Voting 
Member 

Name 
Address 

Telephone Number 
Fax Number 

Email Address 

Affiliation 
and/or 

Employment 

For multi-
county 
coalitions, 
indicate the 
county the 
member 
represents 

Date 
Appoint

ed 

Length of 
Current 

Term and 
Date it 

Will End 

Ter
m 

14 Central agency 
administrator or 
designee 

Yes, if 
applicable 

Teresa Matheny 
8649 Baypine Rd., Ste 
300 
Jacksonville, FL  32256 
Ph: (904)726-1500 
tmatheny@ecs4kids.or
g 

Episcopal 
Children’s 
Services 

Clay, Barker, 
Bradford, 
Nassau, 
Putnam & 
St. Johns 

9/21/20
16 

4 year  
N/A 

 

145 Private Sector 
Business 

Yes, if 
needed to 
meet 
private 
sector 
percentage 
or multi-
county 
representa
tion 

Michelle Jonihakis 
4600 Touchton Road, 
Building 200, Suite 400 
Jacksonville, FL 3246 
Ph: (904) 565-4188 
Michelle.jonihakis@td.
com 

Private Sector; 
TD Bank 

St. Johns  Decemb
er 2018 

 4 year 
December 
2022 

1 

156 Private Sector 
Business 

Yes, if 
needed to 
meet 
private 
sector 
percentage 
or multi-
county 
representa
tion 

Aubrie Simpson-
Gotham 
981 Oak Arbor Circle 
St. Augustine, FL 
32084 
Ph: (904) 813-5809 
fosteringconnectionsfl
@gmail.com  
ASimpson057@alumni
.flagler.edu 

Private Sector;  
VIPKID 

St. Johns Decemb
er 2018 

4 year 
December 
2022 

1 
 
 

167 Private Sector 
Business 

Yes, if 
needed to 
meet 
private 
sector 
percentage 
or multi-
county 
representa
tion 

Joy Farris  Stanton  
120 Topsail Dr.  
Ponte Vedra, FL 32081 
(904)679-3418 
(646)596-0178 
Joy.Stanton@bcbsfl.co
m 

Private Sector; 
Blue Cross and 
Blue Shield of 
Florida, Inc.  

St. Johns   
March 
16, 2016 
 
Second 
term 
start 
date: 
March 
2020 
March 
2020 

4 year 
March 
16,2020 
 
March 2024 

 
 
2 

178 Private Sector 
Business 

Yes, if 
needed to 
meet 
private 
sector 
percentage 
or multi-
county 
representa
tion 

Mike Siragusa 
780 N. Ponce de Leon 
Blvd. 
St. Augustine, FL  
32084 
(904) 829-9066 
masiragusa@ubulaw.co
m 

Private Sector; 
Upchurch Bailey 
and Upchurch, 
Attorney at Law 

St. Johns Septemb
er 2018 
 
Second 
term 
start date 
Sept. 
2022 

4 year 
September 
2022 
 
Sept. 2026 

1 
 
 
2 

189 Private Sector 
Business 

Yes, if 
needed to 
meet 
private 
sector 

Kyle Gammon 
449 Center St.   
Green Cove Springs, 
FL  32043 
Ph: (904)-291-9330 

Private Sector; 
Vallencourt 
Construction Co., 
Inc. 
 

St Johns Septemb
er 2019 

4 year 
September 
2023 

1 

mailto:fosteringconnectionsfl@gmail.com
mailto:fosteringconnectionsfl@gmail.com
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Cou
nt or 

 
N/A 

Designation in 
F.S. 1002.83(3) 

and (4) 

Voting 
Member 

Name 
Address 

Telephone Number 
Fax Number 

Email Address 

Affiliation 
and/or 

Employment 

For multi-
county 
coalitions, 
indicate the 
county the 
member 
represents 

Date 
Appoint

ed 

Length of 
Current 

Term and 
Date it 

Will End 

Ter
m 

percentage 
or multi-
county 
representa
tion 

kyleg@vallencourt.com  

1920 Private Sector 
Business 

Yes, if 
needed to 
meet 
private 
sector 
percentage 
or multi-
county 
representa
tion 

Vina Delcomyn 
4213 County Road 218, 
Ste. 1 
Middleburg, FL 32068 
(904) 291-9598 
(904)291-3365 
delcomynv@yahoo.co
m 

Private Sector; 
Awakenings 
Association 
Management 

Clay Septemb
er 2020 

4 year 
September 
2024 

1 

2021 Private Sector 
Business 

Yes, if 
needed to 
meet 
private 
sector 
percentage 
or multi-
county 
representa
tion 

Whitney Kersey Graves 
4030 Lewis Speedway 
St. Augustine, FL  
32084 
Ph: (904) 209-2760 
Fax: (904)-209-2283 

Private Sector; 
St. Johns County 
Tax Collector 

St Johns March 
2021 

4 year 
March 2025 

1 

212 Private Sector 
Business 

Yes, if 
needed to 
meet 
private 
sector 
percentage 
or multi-
county 
representa
tion 

Mary Ann Holanchock 
316 Hidden Garden Ct. 
St. Augustine, FL  
32086 
Ph: (904)- 669-0668 
maryannholanchock@g
mail.com 

Retired Private 
Sector 

St Johns June 
2021 

4 year 
June 2025 

1 

22 Private Sector 
Business 

Yes, if 
needed to 
meet 
multi-
county 
representa
tion 

Leslie A. Barstow 
228 River Plantation 
Road, S., St. Augustine, 
FL 32092 

Private Sector 
Agape Family 
Health & Baptist 
Medical Center  

St. Johns  March 
2022 

4 year 
March 2026 

1 

 Non Profit 
Child Care 
Provider* 

Yes       
 

 DCF Staff*** No       
 

*    Add rows, as needed. 
**   If required member is not a family home provider. 
*** If there is no local licensing agency.  
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In the event that the CEO of the Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Dawn E. Bell should be 
unavailable during the activation of the Continuity of Operations Plan or when activation of the plan is 
being contemplated, decision making capability for the Early Learning Coalition of North Florida will 
pass to the Office Manager, Marie Hanson.  In the event that Marie Hanson is unavailable, decision making 
capability will pass to the Finance Manager, Susan Pettijohn.  If Susan Pettijohn is also unavailable, 
decision making capability will then pass to Tajaro Dixon, Grants and Operations Manager. 

 



 

A T T A C H M E N T  7 B  
O R G A N I Z A T I O N A L  C H A R T  

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
  
 
 

Board of Directors 

Grants and 
Operations Manager 

Primary Services 
Contractor 

EPISCOPAL 
CHILDREN’S 

 

Chief Executive 
Officer 

 

Effective: March 5, 2020 

Office Manager 
 

Early Literacy 
Outreach Manager 
Program Support 

Specialist (2) 

Screening Specialists 
 

(2) 

 

Finance Manager 

Outreach Assistant 
(12) 

Finance Manager 
 



 

 
Attachment 8a 

Parent and Provider Newsletter 
Emergency Operations Procedures 

 
Dear Parents and Providers, 
 
Florida has unpredictable hurricane activity from year to year and in some cases child care providers may need to have temporary closings or parents may be unable 
to take their children to their child care providers.  The Early Learning Coalition of North Florida and its service provider, Episcopal Children’s Services have also 
had day long closings due to the weather.  Of course a variety of circumstances could result in emergency closures and the activation of our emergency operations 
plan, known as the COOP plan. 
Parents 
If a parent needs child care during the emergency and their regular provider has closed, they will be allowed to transfer temporarily until the original child care 
provider reopens.  After that, a parent will be required to have a transfer form completed by the original provider to make the transfer permanent. Episcopal will 
have Family Service Specialist available to help parents locate emergency care.  If your local county office is closed, call the Episcopal main number at 1-800-238-
3463 to speak to a Family Service Specialist that can help you. 

Providers 
In the event that The Early Learning Coalition of North Florida activated their COOP plan due to an area wide emergency, providers forced to close will be paid for 
the duration of the emergency, not to exceed 10 days total absences for the month in any one month.  Child care providers need to mark the attendance roster with 
the first letter of the storm or otherwise indicate the cause of the closure.  In the case of Hurricane Frances for example, rosters would be marked with an “F” for the 
days closed.  If child care were closed due to a security issue, a provider might use an “S” for security.  The important thing is that when someone looks at the roster, 
perhaps a year from now, that it is clear that the absences were due to unusual circumstances. 
 
Providers closing due to conditions not considered an area wide emergency can not be paid for their closures.  An example would be if a provider closed due to a 
water main break affecting only their center.  Saint Johns is also prohibited by federal law to pay twice for the same child for the same time period.  Therefore, if a 
parent transfers to another center during the emergency, we can only pay the provider that actually provides the care. 

In the event of a COOP plan activation, The Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, and Episcopal Children’s Services, will notify providers as soon as possible 
by phone, fax, or e-mail.  At the same time ECS asks that after an emergency or disaster providers let us know whether you are open and when you expect to open. 
Please call the ECS office closest to you or our main number after an area wide emergency to let us know your status.  We will also accept provider damage reports, 
in order to keep the state informed of the area’s needs.  

If we have moved to another location during the emergency, we will also ask providers to post a notice to parents in their centers saying that we are now in emergency 
operations, giving our contact information,.  Additionally, our emergency information will be posted on our web site at ecs4kids.org and on our voice mail at 1-800-
238-3463. If the relocation and the emergency plan are expected to last for more than a day or two, parents will also be notified of the changes by mail.   

We hope this information will make dealing any future emergencies a little easier.  If we can be of any further assistance, please feel free to contact your local family 
services specialist or the Episcopal Children’s Services main office at 1-800-238-3463. 
 
Sincerely, 
Teresa Matheny 



 

Chief of Programs and Administration 
 
 

Attachment 8 B 
 

CANNED NEWS RELEASE 
 
 

Prior to Activation of COOP 
 
The Early Learning Coalition of North Florida and/or Episcopal Children’s Services, serving Baker, Bradford, Clay, Nassau, Putnam and St. Johns 
Counties Early Learning families, are temporarily moving operations as of     from       to   
   due to the following occurrence:      .  Families or others in       
County needing services may call      to reach the Coalition or Episcopal representative.  Families that reside in a county not 
named may contact their local One Stop Office.  More information may be obtained by going to www.elcnorthflorida.org or www.ecs4kids.org. You 
will be informed when operations return to our regular place of business. 
 
During Activation of COOP 
 
The Early Learning Coalition of North Florida and/or Episcopal Children’s Services, serving Baker, Bradford, Clay, Nassau, Putnam and St. Johns 
Counties, have temporarily moved operations as of      to      due to      .  
Families or others in     County(ies) needing services may call       to reach a Coalition or Episcopal 
representative. Families that reside in a county not named may contact their local One Stop Office.  More information may be obtained by going to 
www.elcnorthflorida.org or www.ecs4kids.org. You will be informed when operations return to our regular place of business. 
 
COOP Plan Is Ended  
 
The Early Learning Coalition of North Florida and/or Episcopal Children’s Services, serving Baker, Bradford, Clay, Nassau, Putnam and St. Johns 
Counties have ended emergency operations from       and will once again be available to serve families from our regular 
business offices.  Families needing service may call      or 904-726-1500.  More information may be obtained by going to 
www.elcnorthflorida.org or www.ecs4kids.org. 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.ecs4kids.org/
http://www.ecs4kids.org/


 

 
Attachment 9 

 
Infectious Disease Emergency Addendum to the ELCNF COOP Plan 

 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Infectious disease emergencies are circumstances caused by biological agents, including organisms such as bacteria, viruses or toxins with the 
potential for significant illness or death in the population. Infectious disease emergencies may include naturally occurring outbreaks (e.g., measles, 
mumps, meningococcal disease), emerging infectious diseases (e.g., COVID-19, SARS, avian influenza), and bioterrorism. The circumstances of 
infectious disease emergencies may vary by multiple factors, including type of biological agent, scale of exposure, mode of transmission and 
intentionality (bioterrorism), and many others. Public health measures to contain such outbreaks are especially important for diseases with high 
morbidity or mortality and limited medical prophylaxis and/or treatment. The ELCNF will follow all protocol as directed by the State of Florida. 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of the Infectious Disease Emergency Addendum Plan is to offer additional guidance to the existing COOP plan in the case of outbreaks 
of diseases caused by infectious agents, biological toxins, or responding to other infectious disease emergencies as defined above. 
Activities that may be implemented during an Infectious Disease Emergency include: 
 
• Coordination with other city, regional, state and federal agencies and other organizations responding to a large public health emergency. The 
employees of the Early Learning Coalition are to be considered interchangeable during emergencies and should be willing to serve in other agency 
roles to ensure operational needs during these emergencies as well as following the emergency during a rebuild. 
• Development and dissemination of information and guidance for our employees to ensure proper protocols with the community we serve. 
• Public health disease containment measures such as infection control, isolation and quarantine, or restriction and clearance. 
• Coordination of internal work processes and management of alternate work when necessary. 
 
SCOPE 
 
An infectious disease emergency occurs when urgent and possibly extensive public health and medical interventions are needed to respond to and 
contain an infectious disease outbreak or biological threat that has the potential for significant morbidity and mortality in the Northeast Florida area. 
The communicable disease control and prevention efforts will include routinely receiving reports of cases of infectious disease and will update staff 
as a result of these reports and the State of Florida’s plan for containment measures. This plan is intended to be used for any infectious disease 
emergency that requires a response that may require changing normal ELCNF business operations in order to maintain the health and safety of our 
employees, the clients we serve, and the public at large.  



 

TRAVEL 
 
In light of the foregoing, the ELCNF would also like to ask employees to self-identify whether they or a family member have traveled to impacted 
regions where the current threat has been indicated. (i.e., areas with extensive person-to-person transmission of the illness).  
For those employees identified as having potential exposure, the ELCNF may direct you to work from home if the C.D.C. recommends an incubation 
period.  
Employees who do not want to provide information about travel or potential exposure may also be asked to work from home or not work until it has 
been determined that the employee is safe to return to work. The ELCNF will follow all guidelines as indicated by the CDC, State and local Health 
officials. 
 
CLOSURE OF ELCNF WORK LOCATIONS 
 
In the need to prevent illness, when recommended by State of Florida or Federal officials, the closure of ELCNF locations may become necessary. 
In this case, all employees will need to be prepared to work remotely to ensure the continuity of our operations. This will be completed in the 
following manner: 
 

• Employees previously approved to work from home may continue to do so immediately. Check in calls and/or electronic correspondence with 
his or her supervisor for accountability will be conducted and work to be performed will be documented. 

• Employees not yet approved to work from home but whose positions allow for work from home may do so with daily supervisory check in’s 
and a detailed list of approved duties completed and submitted to their immediate supervisor. 

o Employees should check their home internet connectivity ability by logging into https://www.speedtest.net/ and send a screenshot of 
the connect ability results to  Compass MSP at help@compassmsp.com  or call Compass at 904-777-0087 to gauge the ability to be 
successful with your work load or receive assistance. 

o Employees at the main office location in St. Augustine can check their voicemail through their email by dialing the main number 
(904) 342-2267 and press # your extension.  For our employees working in the two remote offices, please leave a greeting on your 
office phone that you are not in the office but will be checking your voicemails daily and will respond to those calls as soon as it is 
conveniently possible. You should also provide the main St. Augustine Office number on your greeting as well to allow for an 
alternate option for the caller.   

• All other employees whose positions normally do not allow for work from home; where possible and based on ELCNF agency needs, may be 
assigned alternative duties which can be completed from home.  These positions will also be required to participate in check in’s and be 
willing to work with alternative duties during the emergency closure period or use available paid leave to cover the period of time the ELCNF 
is closed. These employees should also check their connectivity and follow the guidelines regarding their phones outlined above.   

 
  

https://www.speedtest.net/
mailto:help@compassmsp.com


 

WHEN ILLNESS STRIKES 
 

• Follow guidelines posted by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). 
• Employees are encouraged to utilize Florida Blue Teladoc services, unless their symptoms are severe. www.teladoc.com or 1-800-835-2362 
• Use wellness CDC based programs to instruct all ELCNF employees about hygiene and disease prevention.  
• Tell employees to stay home if they have a fever and cough and to seek care for severe respiratory distress. All employees who are sick 

during emergency closures, or who report in as sick, during these times, should not work. 
• Once offices re-open, all employees who are sick or show symptoms of illness should remain home until fever is gone for a minimum of 24 

hours and be evaluated by a physician before returning to work. 
• If employees need to be off work for a long time for issues related to an infectious disease, these issues will be handled on a case-by-case 

basis by Executive Director Dawn Bell and or the Office Manager, Marie Hanson. 

Identifying Coronavirus Symptoms 
 
Common coronaviruses typically cause mild to moderate upper-respiratory tract illnesses, and 
those affected exhibit cold-like symptoms. The most common symptoms include: 

• Headache 
• Cough 
• Fever 
• Sore throat 
• Runny nose 

Some cases of coronavirus can be more severe, and individuals experience more serious lower  

respiratory tract illnesses like bronchitis and pneumonia.  For the elderly, infants and those with 
weakened immune systems, a coronavirus can be deadly.  Therefore, it is important to report all flu and  

cold like symptoms and stay home to prevent spread. 
 

http://www.teladoc.com/


Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 

DESCRIPTION  
Retro Approval of the ELCNF Insurance Coverage with Florida Insurance 
Trust through Coalition Insurance Solutions, Inc. Cyber Coverage. 
 

Reason for 
Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Florida Insurance Trust is an Insurance Company that is specific to Florida and 
to Non-Profits and provides the best costs and insurance coverage to its clients.  
It has been recognized as the leader in the non-profit insurance pooling 
industry. 
 
Effective December 11, 2022, ELCNF are renewing the following coverage 
with Florida Insurance Trust (FIT): 

• Cyber Coverage, Cost:  $9,164.00 (18 months coverage) 
 
The total cost of this coverage exceeds Dawn Bell, C.E.O’s authority to 
approve.   
 
 
If this is not approved, the Coalition would not be insured for Cyber coverage 
and  would be in violation of Coalition and Department of Early Learning 
policy but Florida State Policy as well. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

How the Action will be 
accomplished 

The Boards approval will keep the cyber insurance in place 

 

























Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Annual Board Meeting March 13, 2019 

 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of Representative of Private Family Home Care Providers: 
Patricia Dorsey  
 

Reason for Recommended Action Patricia Dorsey is the owner/operator of Legacy 3 Child Development 
Center.  Patricia is a former (retired) special education 
teacher/administrator and Director of special education.  She brings a 
global perspective to the needs of young children.  Her mission is to 
represent the providers throughout the state giving a sincere, authentic 
voice to the services they provide, the challenges and struggles they 
face as childcare providers. 

Her Term will be:  March 2023 to March 2028 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
• The Coalition would be out of compliance by not having a 

mandated seat filled. 
  

How the Action will be accomplished Board approval; then OEL will be notified via Plan 
Amendment/Board Roster submission. 

 
 
 
 









Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting June 21, 2017 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Approval of the Member Appointed by Board of County 
Commissioners or the Governing Board of a Municipality:  
Krista Joseph  
 

Reason for Recommended Action Krista Joseph has been appointed to fill the vacancy created by 
the recent change in Commissioner elections and assignments. 
 
Commissioner Joseph’s ELCNF term would extend from March 
2023 – March 2028. 
 
If this is not done, the following would occur: 
• The Coalition would continue to be out of compliance by not 

having a mandated seat filled. 
  

How the Action will be accomplished Board approval; then OEL will be notified via Plan 
Amendment/Board Roster submission. 
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Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

 

B O A R D  M E M B E R S H I P  S U M M A R Y  

As of March 8, 2023 
 

Position Name Term Start Date Term End Date 

B A K E R  
Total Private Sector 0 

B R A D F O R D  

    

Total Private Sector 0 

C L A Y  
Governor Appointee Private Sector Ron Coleman November 22, 2013 April 30, 2016 

Governor Appointee Private Sector *Brian H. Graham May 14, 2015 April 30, 2019 

Private Sector Vina Delcomyn -  Treasurer September 2020 September 2024 

Total Private Sector 3 

P U T N A M  
Representative of Programs for Children with Disabilities 

under the Federal Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Act Marsha Peacock September 2021 September 2025 

County Health Department Director or Designee Eleanor Hoffman September 2022 September 2026 

Appointed by Putnam County District Superinendent of 

Schools Jessica Stallings March 2022 

 

March 2026 

    

Total Private Sector 0   

S T .  J O H N S  
Member Appointed by Bd. of County Commissioners or 

the Governing Board of a Municipality Krista Joseph March 2023 March 2027 

Head Start Director *Brian McElhone July 2021 July 2025 

Governor Appointee Private Sector CHAIR Vacant, Chair   

Private Sector Mike Siragusa September 2018 September 2026 

Private Sector Michelle Jonihakis December 2018 December 2026 

Private Sector Kyle Gammon September 2019 September 2023 

Total Private Sector 3 

M U L T I  C O U N T I E S  
DCF Regional Administrator or Designee Cassandra Virgo June 2022 June 2026 

 Jennifer Overley December 2022 December  2026 

Regional Workforce Board Executive Director or *Renee Williams, Secretary (Baker, September 2014 September 2026 
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Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

 

Designee Clay, Nassau, Putnam, St. Johns) 

President of a Florida College System or Designee 
* Dr. Myrna Allen,  
(Clay, Putnam, St. Johns) September 2014 September 2026 

Representative of Private Family Home Child Care 

Providers 
Patricia Dorsey 
(Putnam County) March 2023 March 2027 

Representative of Faith Based Child Care Providers 
*Theresa Little,  
(Putnam, St. Johns) December 7, 2016 December 2025 

Private Sector 
 Leslie A. Barstow 
(St. Johns) March 2022 March 2026 

Private Sector 

Aubrie Simpson Gotham, Vice 

Chair 
(St. Johns) December 2018 December 2026 

Private Sector 
*Joy Farris, Interim Chair 
(St. Johns) March 2020 March 2024 

Private Sector Mary Ann Holanchock June 2021 June 2025 

Total Private Sector 4 

Combined Total Private Sector (Must comprise 

MORE THAN 1/3 of total Board Membership): 10 

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP 21 
 Second 4 year term 

 

 Ron Coleman- Governor appointee for the private sector has filed paperwork with the Governor’s office for approval of a second term.  I 

received word that Ron is approved, just waiting on documentation. 

 

 Nancy Pearson- Governor appointee for the private sector has retired effective April 30, 2021.  We are working with the Governor’s office 

for approval of a new Board Chair appointee.   Nancy officially retired April 30, 2021. 

 

 Dr. Myrna Allen- Term date is September 2018; she has served one term and has been reappointed as the Designee by President Joe Pickens 

of St. Johns River State College to serve a second term.  The Board approved Dr. Allen’s second term on the September 19, 2018 meeting.  

Dr. Allen’s second term expired September 2022. The Board approved Dr. Allen’s third term on the septmeber 14, 2022 meeting.  Dr. Allen’s 

third term expires Septemer 14, 2026.  (President of a Florida College system designee) 

 

 Renee Williams- Term date is September 2018; she has served one term and has been  reappointed for a second term as the Designee by 

President Bruce Ferguson of the Regional Workforce Board.  The Board approved R. Williams second term on the September 19, 2018 

meeting.  R. Williams second term expired September 2022. The Board approved R Williams third term on the September 14, 2022 meeting.  

R Williams third term expires Sepember 2026. (Regional Workforce Board Executive Director or Designee) 
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Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

 

 Joy Farris-Term date is March 16,2020.  The Board approved J. Farris’  second term on the March 11, 2020 meeting.  J. Farris’ second term 

expires March 2024. 

 

 Theresa Little- 1st term expired December 2020.  The Board approved for a second term at the March 10, 2021 Board Meeting with the 

second term ending March 2025. 

 

 Theresa Metheney – ECS Representative -The position was eliminated from the Board March 2022. 

 

 Andrew Warnock, DCF Regional  Admin/Designee – Was replaced with Cassandra Virgo ate the  June 15, 2022 Board meeting. 

 

 Cassandra Virgo, DCF Regional Admin/Designee – Board approved June 2022 and expires June 2026.   

 

 Rebecca Chandler, DCF Regional Admin/Designee – Board approved March 2022, term expired March 2026.  Replaced by Jennifer 

Overley December 2022. 

 

 Jessica Bishop, Putnam County Health Dept. Designee- Board approved June 2021.Was replaced by Eleanor Hoffman September 2022. 

 

 Eleanor Hoffman, Putnam County Health Dept. Designee – Board approved September 2022, expired September 2026 

 

 Whitney Kersey-Graves  - March 2023, removed from Board per a DEL review, no private sector member can be employed by public 

sector.  

 

 

Mandatory Seats: All mandatory seats have been filled. 

 

 Combined Total Private Sector (Must be comprised of MORE THAN 1/3 of total Board Membership): 1/3 of 20= 50%.  We currently have 

11 private sector members. 
 

 Total Membership: 15 to 30 members.  We currently have 22 board members. 



BOARD
MEMBER ABSENTEEISM LOG
By-Laws   Unexcused   absences from  two (2)

3.2.8.  Mandated

members with   three (3)  consecutive 

X = Attended
No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No meeting No meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting

9/8/2021 Oct - 21 Nov-21 12/1/2021 Jan- 22 Feb-22 3/9/2022 April -22 May 22 6/15/2022 July 2022 August 2022 9/14/2022 October 2022 November 2022 12/7/2022

Allen, M. X X X EXCUSED X Excused

Barstow, L. X X X X

Bishop, J. X X X EXCUSED No longer a member No longer a member

Chandler, R. EXCUSED EXCUSED Excused No longer a member

Coleman, R. X X EXCUSED X X Excused

Delcomyn, V. X EXCUSED x X X X

Farris, J. X X X X Excused X

Gammon, K. X EXCUSED EXCUSED EXCUSED X Excused

Garcia, M. No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Graham, B. EXCUSED EXCUSED EXCUSED EXCUSED Excused X

Hoffman, E. X X

Holanchock, M. EXCUSED X X X X X

Hill, M. No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Johns, J. No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Jonihakis, M. X X X X Excxcused X

Kersey Graves, W. EXCUSED X X X X X

Little, T. X EXCUSED X X X X

Matheny, T X X X No longer a member No longer a member No longer a 

member

McElhone, B. EXCUSED X EXCUSED X X Excused

Montoro, Bianco EXCUSED No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Overly, Jennifer X

Pearson, N.
No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Peacock, M. X EXCUSED X X X Excused

Puckett, C. EXCUSED No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Simpkins, K.
No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Simpson-Gotham,
A.

X X X X X X

Siragusa, M. X Excused EXCUSED EXCUSED X X

Stallings, J X X X X

Tauch, P. X X EXCUSED X X Excused

Virgo, Cassandra EXCUSED Excused X

Warnock, Andrew X EXCUSED NO LONGER  A 

MEMBER

NO LONGER  A 

MEMBER

NO LONGER  A 

MEMBER

Whitehurst, C. X X X X X Excused

Williams, R. X EXCUSED X X X X

MEMBER NAME
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